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OREGON DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
100 SW MARKET STREET
PORTLAND, OREGON 97201-5702

THE RETURN SHOULD BE RECEIVED BY MAY 15, 2024
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Form CT'1 2

For Oregon Charities
For Accounting Periods Beginning in:

2023

100 SW Market Street

Charitable Activities Section
Oregon Department of Justice

Portland, OR 97201-5702
Email: charitable@doj.oregon.gov
Website: https://www.doj.state.or.us

Line-by-line instructions for completing the annual
report form can be found on our website.

You can now file reports and
pay by credit card using our
online form at
https://justice.oregon.gov/
paymentportal/Account/Login

VOICE (971) 673-1880
TTY (800) 735-2900
FAX (971)673-1882

Section I. General Information

1. 17175
KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

300 MARKET STREET #200

LEBANON, OR
541-451-1581

97355

Cross Through Incorrect ltems and Correct Here:
(See instructions for change of name or accounting period.)

Registration #:
Organization Name:
Address:

City, State, Zip:

Phone: Fax: Amended
Email: Report?
Period Beginning: 01/01/23  Period Ending: 12/31/23 ]

2. Did a certified public accountant audit your financial records? - If yes, attach a copy of the auditor’s report, financial
statements, accompanying notes, schedules, or other documents supplementing the report or financial statements. Yes |:| No

3. Is the organization a party to a contract with a fundraising firm that relates to solicitations in Oregon? If yes, check
the type of solicitations;

Ij/ in-person; I:I direct mail; I:I advertising; I:Ivending machine; I:I telephone; or I:I other solicitations. L1 vYes No
If yes, also write the name of the fundraising firm(s) here: (If you
checked "other solicitations", attach an explanation.)

4. Has the organization or any of its officers, directors, trustees, or key employees ever signed a voluntary agreement
with any government agency or been a party to legal action in any court or administrative agency regarding |:| Yes No
charitable solicitation, administration, management, or fiduciary practices? If yes, attach explanation of each such
agreement or action. See instructions.

5. During this reporting period, did the organization amend its articles of incorporation, bylaws, or trust documents, |:| vy - N
OR did the organization receive a determination or revocation letter from the Internal Revenue Service relating to es - 0
its tax-exempt status? If yes, attach a copy of the amended document or letter.

6. Is the organization ceasing operations and is this the final report? (If yes, see instructions on how to close
your registration.) |:| Yes No

7. Provide contact information for the person responsible for retaining the organization’s records.

Name Position

Phone Mailing Address & Email Address

KERRI GODINEZ FFINANCE COORDINATO

971-361-4647

300 MARKET STREE, SUITE 200, LEBANON,6OR 9

8. List of Officers, Directors, Trustees and Key Employees - List each person who held one of these positions at any time during the year even
if they did not receive compensation. Attach additional sheets if necessary. If an attached IRS form includes substantially the
same compensation information, the phrase "See IRS Form" may be entered in lieu of completing this section. (Oregon law requires
a minimum of three directors for nonprofit public benefit corporations.)

and email address

(A) Name, mailing address, daytime phone number

(B) Title & ©)
average weekly Compensation
hours devoted to (enter $0 if
position position unpaid)

Name: SEE STATEMENT 1
Address:
Phone:

Name:
Address:
Phone:

Name:
Address:
Phone:

Form Continued on Page 2

397701 06-14-24




Section Il. Fee Calculation

9. Total ReVenUe ... . . 9.
[gFrom Part I, Line 12 (current year) on Form 990; Line 9 on Form 990-EZ; Part I, Line 12a on
orm 990-PF. For 990-N filers or others, see the CT-12 instructions for how to calculate total revenue.

Attach explanation if Total Revenue is $0.)

9,419,254.

10. Revenue Fee
(See chart below. Minimum fee is $20, even if total revenue is $0 or a negative amount.) The revenue fee is determined by the
amount on line 9.

Amount on Line 9 Revenue Fee

$0 - $24,999 $20
$25,000 - $49,999 $50
$50,000 $99,999 $90
$100,000 $249,999 $150
$250,000 $499,999 $200
$500,000 . $999,999 $300
$1,000,000 o more $400

11. Net Assets or Fund Balances at End of the Reporting Period | 11.
(From Part I, Line 22 (end of year) on Form 990; Line 21 on Form
990-EZ; or Part Ill, Line 6 on Form 990-PF. For 990-N filers or others,
see the CT-12 instructions to calculate. Attach explanation if amount
is $0 or a negative number)

12. Net Fixed Assets Used to Conduct Charitable Activities 12.
(Generally, from Part X, Line 10c on Form 990; Line 23B and possibly
24B on Form 990-EZ; or Part Il, Line 14b on Form 990-PF. For 990-N
filers or others, see the CT-12 instructions to calculate. See the CT-12

instructions if organization owns income-producing assets.

4,178,793.

3,376,464.

10.

400.

14.

15.

13. Amount Subject to Net Assets or Fund Balances Fee 13.

802,329.

(Line 11 minus Line 12. If Line 11 minus Line 12 is less than $50,000, write $0.)

Net Assets or Fund Balances Fee ... .. ...
(Line 13 multiplied by .0001. If the fee is less than $5, enter

Are you filing this report late? |:| Yes No

$0. Not to exceed $2,000. Round cents to the nearest whole dollar.)

14.

80.

15.

0.

16. Total Amount Due

a copy if available.

(If yes, the late fee is a minimum of $20. You may owe more depending on how late the report is. See Instruction 15
for additional information or contact the Charitable Activities Section at (971) 673-1880 to obtain late fee amount.)

(Add Lines 10, 14, and 15. Make check payable to the Oregon Department of Justice.)

16. 480.

17. Attach a copy of the organization’s federal 990 or other return and all supporting schedules and attachments that were filed with the IRS,
except that Form 990 & 990EZ filers do not need to attach a copy of their Schedule B. Also, if the organization did not file with the IRS or
filed a 990-N, but had Total Revenue of $50,000 or more, or Net Assets or Fund Balances of $100,000 or more, see the instructions.
Such organizations may be required to complete certain IRS forms for Oregon purposes only. If the attached return was not filed with the
IRS, then mark any such return as "For Oregon Purposes Only." If your organization files IRS Form 990-N (e-Postcard) please attach

Signature of officer

STEPHANY KOEHNE

Officer's name (printed)

Please Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer/director of the organization. | have examined this return, including all
Sign accompanying forms, schedules, and attachments, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and complete.
Here > EXECUTIVE DIRE

Date Title

300 MARKET STREET #200, LEBANON, O
Address

DAVID DELMORE

Preparer’'s name (printed)

Phone
Preparers | ), DAVID DELMORE LG 08/29/24 503.585.7751
Y Preparer’s Signature Date Phone

1255 LEE ST. SE, SUITE 210, SALEM,
Address

Line-by-line instructions for completing the annual report form can be found at https://www.doj.state.or.us/charitableactivities/
annual-reporting-for-charities/file-your-annual-report. If you click the appropriate link for this year’s form, the
instructions are included in that document. If you would like us to send a copy of the instructions, please call us at

971-673-1880 or send an email to charitable@doj.oregon.gov.

397702 06-14-24




KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

93-0687438

OREGON

OFFICERS INFORMATION

STATEMENT 1

NAME STEPHANY KOEHNE
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME KERRI GODINEZ
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME PAT SMITH
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME JEFF KERSHAW
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME KAY SMITH
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME DON ANDREWS
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME JENNIFER MELTZER
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME ANGELA PASSMORE
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME TORY ULREY
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

40.
127,307.

40.
87,245.

1.
0.

1.
00

1.
0.

10
0.

0.

1.
0.

10
00

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FINANCE COORDINATOR

PRESIDENT

VICE PRESIDENT

SECRETARY/TREASURER

MEMBER

MEMBER

MEMBER

MEMBER

STATEMENT(S) 1



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

NAME TORY WATSON
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

1.
0.

93-0687438

TITLE MEMBER

PHONE

STATEMENT(S) 1



EXTENDED TO_ NOVEMBER 15,
Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

~m 990

Department of the Treasury

2024

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023

Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

A For the 2023 calendar year, or tax year beginning and ending

B cCheckif C Name of organization D Employer identification number

applicable:

change | KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
chénge | _Doing businessas _ KIDCO HEADSTART 93-0687438
raten Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Roomy/site | E Telephone number
Finat 300 MARKET STREET #200 541-451-1581
ﬁrergm- City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gross receipts § 9 ’ 419 ’ 254.
Amended] LEBANON, OR 97355 H(a) Is this a group return

[_]&88"=* | F Name and address of principal officer: STEPHANY KOEHNE for subordinates? [lvYes No
pencing SAME AS C ABOVE H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:|Yes |:| No

| Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) [ 1 501(c)( ) (nsertno.) [ 4947(a)1

yor [ ] 597

J Website: WWW.KIDCOHEADSTART.ORG

If "No," attach a list. See instructions
H(c) Group exemption number

[ ] Other

K _Form of organization: Corporation [ | Trust [ ] Association

| L Year of formation: 197 7| M State of legal domicile: OR

[Partl| Summary

o| 1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: PROVIDE COMPREHENSIVE PRESCHOOL
0 PROGRAM THAT ENHANCES CHILDREN'S DEVLOPMENT & SUPPORTS FAMILIES.
g 2 Check this box |:| if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
% 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 8
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) . ... 4 8
9 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2023 (Part V, line 2a) . 5 171
€| 6 Total number of volunteers (eSHMALE if NECESSAIY) ..................occccuevrcrcorecroenscrenoer 6 174
G| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11 ... oiiiiiiiiiiii 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 7,934,105. 9,403,795.
2| o Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 0. 0.
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 293. 350.
€1 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) 13,587. 15,109.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIll, column (A), line 12) ... 7, 947 r 985. 9 ’ 419 ’ 254.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 13) 0. 1,000.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line4) . 0. 0.
ol 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part X, column (A), lines 5-10) 6,293,435. 7,436,698.
2 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) . . 0. 0.
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) 0.
Wl 47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f24e) 1,468,666. 1,753,045.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part X, column (A), line25) 7,762,101. 9,190,743.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline 12 ... ... 185,884. 228,511.
5§ Beginning of Current Year End of Year
9 20 Total assets (Part X, e 16) ... 4,622,936. 5,328,039,
< 21 Total liabilties (Part X, line 26) ... 666,630. 1,149,246.
25 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from iNe 20 ..........cco.coooviivvvvovirverrirrs, 3,956,306. 4,178,793.

| Part Il | Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign Signature of officer Date
Here STEPHANY KOEHNE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date cheok [ ]| PTIN
Paid DAVID DELMORE DAVID DELMORE 08/29/24 Isfelf-employed P01262760
Preparer |Firm'spame SINGERLEWAK LLP Frm'sEIN 95-2302617
Use Only | Firm'saddress 1255 LEE ST. SE, SUITE 210

SALEM, OR 97302 Phoneno.503.585.7751

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions ... ... Yes |:| No
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 332001 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)



Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438 page?
| Part i | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPart Il _................oocoooooeiiiieiii i |:|
1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

THE HEAD START PROGRAM PROVIDES A COMPREHENSIVE EARLY CHILDHOOD
DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATION SERVICES FOR PRESCHOOL CHILDREN AND THEIR
FAMILIES WHO ARE FURTHEST FROM OPPORTUNITY.

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 0r 990-EZ2 [Jves [X]No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? |:| Yes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 8,504,434. including grants of $ 1,000. ) (Revenue $ )
THE ORGANIZATION OPERATES A REGIONAL HEAD START PROGRAM, IN LINN &
BENTON COUNTIES, OREGON, THAT IS FUNDED BY A DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES GRANT, AN OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION-ELD GRANT, AND
LOCAL COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTIONS. GRANTS ARE USED FOR THE HEAD START
PROGRAM BENEFITTING A POPULATION OF APPROXIMATELY 450 CHILDREN ANNUALLY
(FUNDED ENROLLMENT OF 366, TOTAL NUMBER IS ABOVE THIS DUE TO DROPS AND
CHILDREN ADDED TO REPLACE CHILDREN DROPPED). SERVICES INCLUDE EARLY
LEARNING EDUCATION FOR THE CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES, INCLUDING
RESOURCE REFERRALS, GOAL SETTING/SKILL TRAINING, AND CRISIS MANAGEMENT,
FOR THE ADULTS.

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses 8,504,434.

Form 990 (2023)

332002 12-21-23



Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438  page3
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
If "YES," COMPIETE SCREAUIE A ..o 1 X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? |f "Yes," complete SChEAUIE C, PArt | .............ccooeeeeeee e 3 X
4  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? jf "Yes," complete SCheQUIE C, PAt Il .............c.oc. oot 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 |f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part lll ....................c....ccocooeeeeeeeeeeeeee. 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Il ...............cc.cvcvoeveeeeeeee 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? Jf "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE D, Part lll ... oo\ oo 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV ... ... 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi-endowments? Jf "Yes," complete SChedule D, Part V. ...............c..ccocoi oo 10 X
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X,
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? jf "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Pt VI oo 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VI ..............ccoo oo, 11b X
c Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ..................cccoo oo 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX ...............ccociii oo Lomd| X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e | X
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ............ 11f | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? |f "Yes," complete
SCHEAUIE D, Parts XI NG XIl ...............ooo...oooooeeoeoe oo 12a | X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xl is optional ............... 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i))? If "Yes," complete Schedule E  ................oovovoooo . 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? |f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts | QNG IV ...............cooow oo e 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? jf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 11and IV ... @ 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? i "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV ................c.ccoio oo, 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? f "Yes, " complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions ... 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines
1c and 8a? f "Yes," complete SChEAUIE G, Part Il ..............coooe oo oo 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? /f "Yes,"
COMPIete SCREAUIE G, PaIt Il .............o oo 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? jf "Yes," complete Schedule H ...............ccoccooivooeeeeeeeeeeeee 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? if "Yes." complete Schedule I. Parts [and Il ..........c.occovieeiiiiiiciiiiien: 21 X

332008 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)



Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438 Page 4
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (ontinueq)

Yes | No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part X, column (A), line 2? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il ...................occocoioooeeee oo 22 X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIB J ... .. oo 23 X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 /f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete

Schedule K. If "NO," GO 10 M@ 25@ ..............c.ooe oo 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b

c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-eXemMpt DONAS? | s 24c

d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and

that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE L, Part | ... oo\ oo 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il 26 X

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,

creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Partlll ......... 27 X

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule L, Part IV,
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? ¢
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ......................coo oo 28a X
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? ¢
"Yes," complete SChedule L, Part IV ...................c..coo oo 28c X
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? jf "Yes, " complete Schedule M
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? f "Yes," complete SCREAUIE M ...............c..cooi oo 30 X

g8

31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part | 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? |f "Yes," complete

SCREAUIE N, PAIt Il ..o oo 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 |f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | ...............ccocooooeee oo, 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part Ii, lll, or IV, and

PAI V, l18 T ....ooo. oo 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . 35a X

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity

within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€ 2 ...............cocvocioeoeeeoeeeee e 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€ 2 ..................ccccoii i 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ........................ 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?

Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... i et 38 | X

| PartV | Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -O- if not applicable ... ... ... 1a 3
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize WINNers? ... 1ic [ X

332004 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)



Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438  page5
[PartV| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (ontinued)

Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn ... ... ... 2a 171
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? e [ X
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . ... 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? jf "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O ...............c..c.......... 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear? . .. 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were MOt tax dedUCHIDIE? e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
o file FOIM 82827 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year ... . . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . . 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? .. [ 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, line 12 .. ... ... |110a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received fromthem.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ................. 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans ... [ 13b
c Enterthe amountof reservesonhand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? jf "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) dUring the YEar? ... ..., 15 X
If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? . 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17  Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49537 17
If "Yes," complete Form 6069.

332005 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)



Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438  page 6

| Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure. roreach "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI e

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a

(3]

7a

9

Yes | No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear ... ... 1a 8
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent .. . . 1b 8
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? | e, 2 | X
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision

of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?
Did the organization have members or stockholders? e,
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or

more members of the governing body? e 7a
Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or

persons other than the governing body? e 7b X
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:

The QOVEIMING DOTY? oo 8a | X

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?
Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the

organization’s mailing address? /f "Yes " provide the names and addresses on Schedule Q ......ccoooiieiieiieiioeiiiiiiiiiciiieens 9 X

o |0 |» |
bl el bl Lot

b

Section B. Policies (7y;s Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a
b

11a

12a

13
14
15

16a

Yes [ No
Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X

If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,

and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? . 10b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? /f "No," go to line 13 12a| X

Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 12b | X

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f "Yes," describe

on Schedule O how thiS WAS GONE ... ... e 12c | X
Did the organization have a written whistleblower PoliCY? .. ..., 13| X
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official ... |15a X

15b | X

Other officers or key employees of the organization ... ...
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a

taxable entity during the Year? 16a X
If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation

in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s

exempt status with respect to such arrangements?

16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed OR

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website Another’s website Upon request |:| Other (explain on Schedule O)

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records

KERRI GODINEZ - 971-361-4647
300 MARKET ST, SUITE 200, LEBANON, OR 97355
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Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438  Page?
|Part VII| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
® | ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee."
® | ist the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.
® | ist all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® | ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

|:| Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) © (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average | o chPe Sf::fr’er‘than one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any g the organizations compensation
hours for | S R H organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related g § R % (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| £ | = 2 |g 1099-NEC) and related
below Elel.]E18E = organizations
ine) | E|E|=|5|2E 5
(1) STEPHANY KOEHNE 40.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR X 111,716. 0. 15,591.
(2) KERRI GODINEZ 40.00
FINANCE COORDINATOR X 72,530. 0. 14,715.
(3) PAT SMITH 1.00
PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(4) JEFF KERSHAW 1.00
VICE PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(5) KAY SMITH 1.00
SECRETARY/TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
(6) DON ANDREWS 1.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(7) JENNIFER MELTZER 1.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(8) ANGELA PASSMORE 1.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(9) TORY ULREY 1.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
(10) TORY WATSON 1.00
MEMBER X 0. 0. 0.
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Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438  Page8

| Part VI | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (B) ©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
(do not check more than one
hours per | pox, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(istany | 5 the organizations compensation
hours for | 5 5 organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related | 5 | £ Z (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| 2 | 2 g e 1099-NEC) and related
below ElglslE 22 5 organizations
1b Subtotal . . 184, 246. 0.l 30,306.
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A 0. 0. 0.
d Total(addlinesibandic) ..................ocoooovoiiiiii 184,246. 0. 30,306.
2  Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization 1
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for SUCH iNGIVIGUAI  ......................ooi i 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,000? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual .........................c.......... 4 X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? jf "Yes " complete Schedule J for SUCH DEIrSON «.eowcoiiiieiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiieee i 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A (B) ©
Name and business address NONE Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization 0

Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438  Page 9
| Part VIII | Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII ... i, |:|
(A) (B) ©

Total revenue

Related or exempt
function revenue

Unrelated
business revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections 512 - 514

8 1 a Federated campaigns ... 1a
E b Membershipdues ... ... 1b
("':. ¢ Fundraising events 1ic
;D‘E d Related organizations 1d
g e Government grants (contributions) |1e| 9,399,487.
,5 f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
E similar amounts not included above [ 1f 4,308.
.'E g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f 1g $
3 h Total. Addlines1a-1f ... 9,403,795.
Business Code
g2
e b
S e
a f All other program service revenue .. ... ..
g Total. Add lines 2a-2f ... ... oo
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) .. 350. 350.
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds
5 Royalties ...
(i) Real (i) Personal
6 a Grossrents ... 6a
b Less: rental expenses . [6b
¢ Rental income or (loss) 6¢c
d Netrental income or (I0SS) .......coviiiiiiiiiiei e
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory | 7a
b Less: cost or other basis
g and sales expenses 7b
§ c Gainor(loss) ... 7c
& d Net gain OF (I0SS) ......oivovoo oottt
E 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
o including $ of
contributions reported on line 1c). See
Part IV, line18 . ... 8a
b Less: direct expenses 8b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ...
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
PartIV,line19 ... 9a
b Less: direct expenses ... 9b
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ...
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances ... 103
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b)
c_Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ........................
Business Code
g 11 a OTHER INCOME 900099 15,109.] 15,1009.
gd ©
g d Allotherrevenue
e _Total. Add lines 11a-11d 15,1009.
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions ... 9,419,254. 15,109. 0. 350.

332009 12-21-23
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Form 990 (2023) KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438 Ppage 10
[ Part IX | Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ... |:|
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total e(Qp))enses Prograg?)service Manage(r%)ent and Fund(lr?a)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 1,000. 1,000.
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15and 16 .
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees .. ... 192,308. 29,046. 163,262.
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ...
7 Othersalariesand wages 5,120,479. 4,947,079. 173,400.
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 217,092. 203,335. 13,757.
9 Other employee benefits 1,269,785. 1,189,321. 80,464.
10 Payrolitaxes 637,034. 596,666. 40,368.
11 Fees for services (honemployees):
a Management ...
b Legal 31904' 31904'
¢ Accounting ... 40,060. 40,060.
d Lobbying ...
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees .. ...
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.)
12 Advertising and promotion ...
13 Office expenses ... . ... 134,639. 122,698. 11,941.
14 Information technology . . . ...
16 Royalties ... ..
16  Occupancy 352,647. 256,662. 95,985.
17 Travel .. 73,606. 66,761. 6,845.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials |
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings .
20 Interest 48. 48.
21 Paymentsto affiliates ... ...
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization . 173,301. 157,184. 16,117.
23 Insurance 94,416. 85,635. 8,781.
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a REPATRS AND MAINTENANCE 274,817. 256,623. 18,194.
b FOOD 214,188. 214,188.
¢ SUPPLIES 160,541. 150,512. 10,029.
d TRAINING 103,682. 103,682.
e All other expenses 127,196. 124,042. 3,154.
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 9,190,743.| 8,504,434. 686,309. 0.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here |:| if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

332010 12-21-23
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[ Part X | Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X

332011 12-21-23

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing 706,503.] 1 437,724.
2  Savings and temporary cash investments 22,140.] 2 22,140.
3  Pledges and grants receivable, net 293,712.] 3 555,030.
4  Accounts receivable, net 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ... 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ... 6
8 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
§ 8 Inventories forsaleoruse ... 8
< 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 70,812.] o 91,908.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 6,241 ,456.
b Less: accumulated depreciation 2,864,992, 3,529,769./ 10c 3,376,464.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities 11
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 13
14 Intangible assets ... 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 0.| 15 844,773.
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) ............................ 4,622,936.] 16 5,328,039.
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 336,541.] 17 298,449.
18 Grantspayable 18
19 Deferred reVenue ... ..o 330,089.] 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 21
» | 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
é trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D ... 0.] 25 850,797.
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25 ... 666,630.| 2 1,149,246.
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
§ |27 Netassets without donor restrictions ... 3,956,306.| o7 4,178,793.
@ |28 Netassets with donor restrictions ... 28
B Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here |:|
'-i-, and complete lines 29 through 33.
g 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ... 29
@ | 80 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . 30
<‘t" 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 31
g 32 Totalnetassetsorfund balances ... 3,956,306.] 32 4,178,793.
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... 4,622,936.] 33 5,328,039.
Form 990 (2023)
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[ Part XI | Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI ... e
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 9,419,254.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 9,190,743.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line1 3 228,511.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A) 4 3,956,306.
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities . 6
7 InvestMent eXPenSes 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O) 9 -6,024.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,
COUMN (B)) oo 10 4,178,793.

Part Xll| Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII ...

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash Accrual |:| Other

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.
Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.
As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F?
If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

No

2b

2c

3a

X

3b

X

332012 12-21-23
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. . . OMB No. 1545-0047
iz:izo?m A Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 2023
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organizatibn Employer identification number

KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438
[Partl | Reason for Public Charity Status. (Al organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 |:| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)-

|:| A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

|:| A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

|:| A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital’s name,

city, and state:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:

An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.

See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

|:| Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c |:| Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:| Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e |:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type llI

functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

A ON

0 00 B0 O

10

f Enter the number of supported organizations . |
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (ii) EIN (iiii) Type of organization [ (Iv)Is the organizationlisted | (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other
o (described on lines 1-10 in your governing document? K R . i
organization ) g support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) Yes No
Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 332021 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023



Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438 page?2
| Part i | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lll. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lIl.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.") 7424683.| 6541639.| 7891412.| 8267694.| 9404405.(39529833.

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Addlines 1through3 | 7424683.] 6541639.] 7891412.| 8267694.] 9404405.[39529833.

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

column(
Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 39529833.
Sectlon B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
7 Amounts fromline4 ... 7424683.| 6541639.( 7891412.( 8267694.] 9404405.[39529833.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources __ 281. 375. 25. 293. 350. 1,324.

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explainin Part VL) 9,892. 5,498. 21,254. 10,087. 14,499. 61,230.
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 39592387.
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) . . 12 |

13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, Check this DOX and SO MerE ...t e e i et |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f) ... ... 14 99.84 %
15 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part I, line 14 15 99.84 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ..
b 33 1/3% support test - 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported Organization |:|

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . |:|
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... ..
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438 pages
| Part | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5 . .

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

cAddlines7aand7b ...

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from line 6.
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources .

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

cAdd lines 10aand 10b ... ... ..
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VL) ----oooooeoe
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

CheCK this DOX AN SHOP MO O .o oo i iii i iieeeeeiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiieieies |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f) .. ... ... ... ... 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Il line 15 .. e 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2023 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ... .. ... .. 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .. ... |:|
b 33 1/3% support tests - 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 193, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . .
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  .............................. |:|
332023 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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[Part V] Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing

documents? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
lines 3b and 3c below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination. 3b

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? /f
"Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? Jf "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes, " explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /f "Yes,"
answer lines 5b and 5¢ below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action,; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Type I or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b
c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control? 5¢c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? Jf "Yes," provide detail in
Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with

regard to a substantial contributor? jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? if "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? Jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? Jf "Yes," answer line 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

332024 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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[ Part IV | Supporting Organizations (continueq)

Yes | No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a

b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b

c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? Jf "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, provide

____detailin Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported

organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? Jf "Yes," explain in

Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
ization 2

. .
Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

ization(s) 1

—the supported organ
Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? |f "No," explain in Part VI how

the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2
3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have a

significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s

income or assets at all times during the tax year? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's

o o »
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a |:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 pelow.
b |:| The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c [JThe organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructiol
2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes | No
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? |f "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a
b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement,
one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? |f "Yes," explain in

)~

Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Jf "Yes" or "No" provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? jf "Yes. " ibe jn Part VI ization in thi: d. 3b

332025 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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93-0687438 pages6

[PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( explain in Part V). See instructions.

All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

a0 N |-

(O [B W N [=

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

]

7 Other expenses (see instructions)

~

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

1a

Average monthly cash balances

1b

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

ic

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢)

1d

o | |0 |T |v

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors

(explain in detail in Part VI):

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

(]

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

(]

IS

see instructions).

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

(o2 I [ 1 [4)]

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

0[N o |0 |~

Section C - Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

a|djOIN |-

o | |B W N |-

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

6

~

instructions).

|:| Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see

332026 12-21-23

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023



Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

93-0687438 page7

[PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions

Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required - provide details in Part VI) 5
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 6
7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part V1). See instructions. 8
9 Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6 9
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10
0] (i) (iii)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2023 Amount for 2023
1__ Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6
2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2023 (reason-
able cause required - explain in Part VI). See instructions.
3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2023
a_From 2018
b _From 2019
c_From 2020
d From 2021
e From 2022
f _Total of lines 3a through 3e
g Applied to underdistributions of prior years
h_Applied to 2023 distributable amount
i__Carryover from 2018 not applied (see instructions)
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.
4  Distributions for 2023 from Section D,
line 7: $
a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b _Applied to 2023 distributable amount

c_Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2023, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2023. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2024. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

a_Excess from 2019
b _Excess from 2020
c_Excess from 2021
d Excess from 2022
e Excess from 2023

332027 12-21-23
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| Part VI | Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part Ill, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 53, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 11a, 11b, and 11c¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)

332028 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023



SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements MR e, 103007

(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 2023
PartlV, line 6,7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. .
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open tq Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438

| Part | | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 6.

a s ON

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year ...

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control?
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

|:| Yes |:| No

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impermissible private benefit? e iiiiiiiieiiedseeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiiss |:| Yes |:| No

[Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

o 0 T 9o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

|:| Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) |:| Preservation of a historically important land area

|:| Protection of natural habitat |:| Preservation of a certified historic structure

|:| Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements . 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included on line 2a 2c

Number of conservation easements included on line 2¢c acquired after July 25, 2006, and not

on a historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year
Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located
Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? |:| Yes |:| No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)

and section 170((ANB)I? ... e [ Jves [_INo
In Part XIll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and

balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

| Part Il | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part XIll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items.
() Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 $
(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X $

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide

the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 %

b_Assets included in Form 990, Part X $

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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[Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets ,ntinueq)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply).
a |:| Public exhibition d |:| Loan or exchange program
b |:| Scholarly research e |:| Other
c |:| Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIII.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? ... ... |:| Yes |:| No

| Part IV I Escrow and Custodial Arrangements Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
on Form 990, Part X?
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIll and complete the following table:

Amount
¢ Beginning balance ic
d Additions during the year . 1id
e Distributions during the year 1e
fOEnding balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? . |:| Yes |:| No
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XII ... |:|
| Part V | Endowment Funds Complets if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance ... ...
b Contributions ...
c Net investment earnings, gains, and losses
d Grants or scholarships .. ...
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs ...
f Administrative expenses
g Endofyearbalance ...
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment %
b Permanent endowment %
c Term endowment %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
(i) Unrelated organizationS? | e | 3a(i)
(i) Related OrganizationS? . .. | 3a(ii)
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ji), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b
4 Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
| Part VI | Land, Buildings, and Equipment
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a Land 240,129. 240,129.
b Buildings 3,105,203. 858,731.| 2,246,472.
¢ Leasehold improvements 1,448,823. 655,562. 793,261.
d Equipment 405,253. 335,831. 69,422.
e Other ... 1,042,048.] 1,014,868. 27,180.
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990. Part X, line 10c, column (B)) ....cooooieeiiciieiieiicieiiciiciieee, 3,376,464.
Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438 page3

| Part VII| Investments - Other Securities

Complete if the organization answered "Yes"

on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security)

(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives ...
(2) Closely held equity interests
(3) Other

A

A

B

—

l—~ |~
\_/()

©

3 [@ S

©

(H)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 12, col. (B))

| Part VIII| Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes"

on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment

(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B))

| Part IX | Other Assets

Complete if the organization answered "Yes"

on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value

(1) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET FOR OPERATING LEASE, NET 844,773.

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X_line 15, COL (B)) ..ot oottt e e iieseiieeeaas 844,773.

|PartX | Other Liabilities

Complete if the organization answered "Yes"

on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1. (a) Description of liability

(b) Book value

Federal income taxes

LEASE LIABILITY FOR OPERATING

LEASE

850,797.

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990. Part X_line 25. €Ol (Bl wooooooeeeoeoeeoeooeeeooeeeooeeeoeeeeeeoeeeeoeeeeeeoeeeoe 850,797.

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII ...

332053 09-28-23
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438 page4d
| Part XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . 1 9,529, 479.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a

b Donated services and use of facilities .. 2b 110 ,225.

¢ Recoveries of prior year grants 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL) 2d

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 2e 110,225.
3 Subtractline 2e oM iNe 1 e 3 | 9,419,254.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIIl, line7b ... 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) e 4b

¢ Addlinesdaanddb ... 4c 0.

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must eq € 12) 9 r 419 r 254.

ual Form 990. Part | Jin
| Part Xl | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per R eturn

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 9 , 30 6 ’ 992.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities . 2a 110 ’ 225.

b Prioryearadjustments 2b

€ OtherloSSeS . . ... 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL) ... 2d 6,024.

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 2e 116,249.
3 Subtractline 2e oM iNe 1 e 3 | 9,190,743.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIIl, line7b ... ... 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) e 4b

¢ Addlinesdaanddb ... 4c 0.

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part [ fine 18.)  -vioiroeroiiiiiieieiiiieieeieeees. 5 9,190,743.

| Part Xlll| Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART X, LINE 2:

KIDCO RECOGNIZES A LIABILITY FOR UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS WHEN FACTS AND

CIRCUMSTANCES INDICATE THAT AN UNCERTAIN TAX POSITION IS MORE LIKELY THAN

NOT TO BE OVERTURNED BY A TAXING AUTHORITY UPON EXAMINATION. KIDCO

RECOGNIZES ACCRUED INTEREST AND PENALTIES ASSOCIATED WITH UNCERTAIN TAX

POSITIONS, IF ANY, AS PART OF THE INCOME TAX PROVISION. THERE WERE NO

UNRECOGNIZED INCOME TAX BENEFITS, NOR ANY INTEREST AND PENALTIES

ASSOCIATED WITH UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS, ACCRUED OR EXPENSED AS OF AND

FOR THE YEAR DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 RESPECTIVELY.

PART XII, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

LEASE AMORTIZATION EXPENSE 6,024.
332054 09-28-23 Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ CMB o, 19459047
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2023
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.qgov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 2:

PAT SMITH AND KAY SMITH HAVE A FAMILY RELATIONSHIP.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

A COPY OF INFORMATIONAL FORM 990 IS PROVIDED TO AND REVIEWED BY THE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, FINANCE DIRECTOR, AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRIOR TO

FILING.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS REVIEWS THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY ANNUALLY AND

SIGN A DOCUMENT STATING THAT THEY ARE AWARE OF AND WILL ADHERE TO THE

POLICY. ANY INDIVIDUAL THAT HAS AN ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED CONFLICT OF INTEREST

REFRAINS FROM DISCUSSING AND VOTING ON RELATED MATTERS. ALL EMPLOYEES ARE

ALSO REQUIRED TO ADHERE TO THE ORGANIZATION'S WRITTEN CONFLICT OF INTEREST

POLICY AND MUST SIGN A CONFLICT OF INTEREST DOCUMENT STATING THAT THEY ARE

AWARE OF THE POLICY AND AGREE TO COMPLY WITH IT.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

THE OREGON HEAD START ASSOCIATION (OHSA) CONDUCTS A WAGE COMPARABILITY

STUDY OF ALL POSITIONS INCLUDING TOP OFFICIALS. DATE RECEIVED FROM HEAD

START ORGANIZATIONS AND OTHER NON-PROFIT AGENCIES IN OREGON ARE COMPILED BY

AN OUTSIDE CONTRACTED AGENCY AND A REPORT IS ISSUED ONCE EVERY TWO YEARS.

AFTER KIDCO HEAD START RECEIVEDS THE REPORT. IT IS REVIEWED BY THE HUMAN

RESOURCES COMMITTE AND REPORTED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS CONDUCTS A PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ANNUALLY.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) 2023
LHA 332211 11-14-23



Schedule O (Form 990) 2023 Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY 93-0687438

CHANGES IN THE SALARY SCALE ARE ESTABLISHED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND

APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE ANNUAL BUDGETING PROCESS.

CASCADE EMPLOYERS CONSULTSING FIRM UNDERTOOK A MULTI-YEAR WAGE COMPARISON

STUDY FOR KIDS AND COMPANY, WITH RECOMMENDATIONS ON DECOMPRESSING THE

SALARY SCALE AND GETTING POSITIONS TO AT LEAST 80 PERCENT MARKET, WITH

THEIR RECOMMENDATIONS PUT INTO PRACTICE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 18:

THE ORGANIZATION'S INFORMATIONAL FORM 990 IS AVAILABLE ON THE

ORGANIZATION'S WEBSITE AT WWW.KIDCOHEADSTART.ORG/ABOUT.HTML AND GUIDESTAR'S

WEBSITE AT WWW.GUIDESTAR.ORG. IN ADDITION THE ORGANIZATION'S GOVERNING

DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATIONAL FORM 990 ARE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST; GOVERNING MEETING AGENDAS AND MEETING MINUTES ARE

POSTED ON THE WEBSITE.

FORM 990, PART XTI, LINE 9, CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:

LEASE AMORTIZATION EXPENSE -6,024.

332212 11-14-23 Schedule O (Form 990) 2023
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Accountants & Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Kids and Company of Linn County

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kids and Company of Linn County (the
“Organization”) which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements
are issued or available to be issued.

1255 Lee Street SE, Unit 210, Salem, OR 97302 = o
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Board of Directors
Kids and Company of Linn County
Page 2

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control+related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Board of Directors
Kids and Company of Linn County
Page 3

Supplemental Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 US, Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 14, 2024,
on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

SirgoFewnh LLP

May 14, 2024



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 437,724 % 706,503
Certificates of deposit 22,140 22,140
Grants receivable 555,030 293,712
Prepaid expenses 91,908 70,812
Right-of-use asset for operating lease, net 844,773 -
Total current assets 1,951,575 1,093,167
Property and equipment, net 3,376,464 3,529,769
Total assets $ 5,328,039 4,622,936
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 298,449 $ 336,541
Unearned revenue - 330,089
Lease liability for operating lease 850,797 -
Total liabilities 1,149,246 666,630
Net assets
Without donor restrictions 4,178,793 3,956,306
Total liabilities and net assets $ 5,328,039 $ 4,622,936

See notes to financial statements.
4



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Revenues, gains, and other support
Grants and contributions $ 9,399,487 $ 7,933,325
In-kind contributions 110,225 115,055
Fees 19,417 14,367
Interest 350 293
Total revenues, gains, and other support 9,529,479 8,063,040
Expenses
Program services 8,575,805 6,994,214
Management and general 731,187 882,942
Total expenses 9,306,992 7,877,156
Change in net assets 222,487 185,884
Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of year 3,956,306 3,770,422
Net assets without donor restrictions, end of year $ 4,178,793 $ 3,956,306

See notes to financial statements.
5



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Program Management
Services and General Totals

Payroll and benefits $ 6,965,448 $ 471,250 $ 7,436,698
Classroom supplies 68,054 - 68,054
Rent 123,578 67,279 190,857
In-kind rent 71,370 38,855 110,225
Depreciation 157,184 16,117 173,301
Supplies 150,512 10,029 160,541
Repairs and maintenance 256,623 18,194 274,817
Telephone and utilities 133,084 34,730 167,814
Office 122,698 11,941 134,639
Food 214,188 - 214,188
Training 103,682 - 103,682
Professional services - 43,964 43,964
Insurance 85,635 8,781 94,416
Other 25,380 1,229 26,609
Consultants 21,011 1,925 22,936
Child medical and dental 10,597 - 10,597
Travel 66,761 6,845 73,606
Interest expense - 48 48

Total expenses by function $ 8,575,805 $ 731,187 $ 9,306,992

See notes to financial statements.
6



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Program Management
Services and General Totals

Payroll and benefits $ 5,727,945 $ 565,489 6,293,434
Classroom supplies 73,973 - 73,973
Rent 71,145 73,206 144,351
In-kind rent 56,706 58,349 115,055
Depreciation 157,038 23,465 180,503
Supplies 137,518 9,943 147,461
Repairs and maintenance 192,046 - 192,046
Telephone and utilities 53,316 71,955 125,271
Office 106,550 14,888 121,438
Food 148,027 - 148,027
Training 100,689 9,014 109,703
Professional services - 45,198 45,198
Insurance 104,787 6,556 108,343
Other 30,144 486 30,630
Consultants 13,751 1,281 15,032
Child medical and dental 3,198 - 3,198
Travel 20,381 3,045 23,426
Interest expense - 67 67

Total expenses by function $ 6,994,214 $ 882,942 $ 7,877,156

See notes to financial statements.
7



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
Lease asset amortization

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned revenues

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of certificates of deposit
Redemptions of certificates of deposit
Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $

2023 2022
222,487 $ 185,884
173,301 180,504

6,024
(261,318) 131,594
(21,096) (5,020)
(38,092) (276,216)
(330,089) 330,089
(248,783) 546,835
(22,140) (22,140)
22,140 -
(19,996) (7,207)
(19,996) (29,347)
(268,779) 517,488
706,503 189,015
437,724 $ 706,503

See notes to financial statements.
8



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Kids and Company of Linn County (Kidco or the Organization), in operation since 1977, is a
nonprofit, 501(c)(3) organization that is incorporated under the laws of the State of Oregon. The
primary activity is the operation of regional Head Start and Early Head Start programs in Linn,
Benton, and Marion Counties, Oregon, that are funded by Department of Health and Human
Services grants, an Oregon Department of Education grant, and local community contributions.
The grants are used for full and part-day Head Start and Early Head Start programs that follow
the school year benefiting a population of approximately 400 children. The Head Start program
provides comprehensive early childhood development and education services for disadvantaged
preschool children and their families.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP generally requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities
of three months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for longterm
purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, less allowance for uncollectable amounts, are recognized as revenues in the
period revenue is earned. The allowance is an estimate based on management’s knowledge of
historical collection rates and current economic conditions. At December 31, 2023 and 2022,
management has deemed all amounts collectable; therefore, no allowance was established for
the years then ended.




KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or at estimated fair market value at the date of gift.
Donations of equipment with no donor-imposed time restrictions are reported as support without
donor restriction. Major additions or improvements and acquisitions of property and equipment
in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to
operations as they are incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straightline method over
the estimated useful life of the asset. Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment
are recorded in the period incurred. The estimated useful lives for building and improvements
are as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Land improvements 15 years
Furniture 7 years
Office Equipment 5 years

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Organization reviews long-lived assets for indicators of impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Impairment would be recorded in circumstances where undiscounted cash flows expected to be
generated by an asset are less than the carrying value of that asset. As of December 31, 2023,
there were no events or changes in circumstances indicating the carrying amount of long-live
assets may not be recoverable.

Income Taxes

Kidco is a nonprofit organization exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the accompanying
financial statements. The Organization files information returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction
and the State of Oregon. Management has analyzed the tax positions taken by the Organization,
and has concluded that, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there are no uncertain positions
taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition of a liability or disclosure in the
financial statements. The Organization is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions;
however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress.

10



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the Organization’s net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and that may be expendable for any purpose in performing the primary objectives
of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that
will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-
imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions
are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues for Kidco primarily consist of grants awarded by federal and state agencies.
Management has determined that these sources of revenue are most appropriately classified as
conditional contributions, and therefore, revenue is recognized as conditions are met, which is
typically when services are performed. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenses
are reported as unearned revenue in the statement of financial position.

Grants and Contributions - Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as support without
donor restriction unless those amounts are received with donor restrictions that limit use. All
donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions. When
a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), the net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without
donor restriction and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restriction. Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are satisfied within the
same reporting period are reported as support without donor restrictions and increase net assets
without donor restrictions.

In-kind Contributions - In-kind contributions represents estimated market value of the facilities
that are provided to Kidco for program activities below market value. For the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the value was determined by calculating a value per square foot
of a comparable, commercially available rental space and applying that rate to each rented
facility’s square footage.

Volunteer assistance received by the Kidco Head Start program is required as a part of a
matching requirement under the Department of Health and Human Services grant. These
volunteer services are not recognized in the accompanying financial statements because the
criteria for recording these contributed services under U.S. GAAP has not been met.
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KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Allocation of Functional Expenses

The costs of providing program and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses present the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among program and general and administrative activities benefited. In-direct salaries, payroll
taxes and employee benefits are allocated based on an estimation of time and effort,
depreciation is allocated based on usage, and travel is based on staff allocation.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASC Topic 842, Leases, to increase transparency and
comparability among organizations related to their leasing arrangements. The Update requires
lessees to recognize most leases on their balance sheets as a right-of-use (ROU) asset
representing the right to use an underlying asset and a lease liability representing the obligation
to make lease payments over the lease term, measured on a discounted basis. Topic 842 also
requires additional disclosure of key quantitative and qualitative information for leasing
arrangements. Similar to the previous lease guidance, the update retains a distinction between
finance leases (similar to capital leases in Topic 840, Leases) and operating leases, with
classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. The
Organization adopted Topic 842 on January 1, 2022, using the optional transition method to the
modified retrospective approach, which eliminates the requirement to restate the prior-period
financial statements. Under this transition provision, the Organization has applied Topic 842 to
reporting periods beginning on January 1, 2022, while prior periods continue to be reported and
disclosed in accordance with the Organization’s historical accounting treatment under
ASC Topic 840, Leases.

The Organization determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception, which is the
date on which the terms of the contract are agreed to, and the agreement creates enforceable
rights and obligations. A contract is or contains a lease when (i) explicitly or implicitly identified
assets have been deployed in the contract and (ii) the Organization obtains substantially all of
the economic benefits from the use of that underlying asset and directs how and for what purpose
the asset is used during the term of the contract. The Organization also considers whether its
service arrangements include the right to control the use of an asset.

The Organization made an accounting policy election available under Topic 842 not to recognize
ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with a term of 12 months or less. For all other leases,
ROU assets and lease liabilities are measured based on the present value of future lease
payments over the lease term at January 1, 2022 for existing leases upon the adoption of Topic
842. The ROU assets also include any initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date and are reduced by any lease incentives. To determine the
present value of lease payments, the Organization made an accounting policy election available
to non-public companies to utilize a risk-free borrowing rate, which is aligned with the lease term
at the lease commencement date (or remaining term for leases existing upon the adoption of
Topic 842).
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KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following table reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of December 31,:

2023 2022
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 437,724 $ 706,503
Certificates of deposit 22,140 22,140
Grants receivable 555,030 293,712
Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 1,014,894 $ 1,022,355

The Organization manages its liquidity and follows three guiding principles: operating within a
prudent range of financial soundness and stability, maintaining adequate liquid assets to fund
near-term operating needs, and maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance
that long-term obligations will be discharged.

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

The Organization reports certain assets and liabilities at fair value in the financial statements.
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the
measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value
refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable.

Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
based on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Organization can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-
corroborated inputs.
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KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, the
Organization develops inputs using the best information available in the
circumstances.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value, which is the Organization’s
policy.

The Organization’s investments are in certificates of deposit and are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis and are level 2 in the fair value hierarchy as they are valued using observable
inputs and quoted prices for similar assets.

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31:

2023 2022
Land $ 240,129 $ 240,129
Buildings and building improvements 4,554,026 4,554,026
Vehicles 1,042,048 1,042,048
Furniture and equipment 405,253 385,257

6,241,456 6,221,460
Less accumulated depreciation (2,864,992) (2,691,691)

$ 3,376,464 $ 3,529,769

NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has two operating leases for buildings used in operations. In addition, certain
leases contain termination options, where the rights to terminate are held by either the
Organization, the lessor or both parties. These options to extend or terminate a lease are
included in the lease terms when it is reasonably certain that the Organization will exercise that
option. The Organization’s operating leases do not contain any material restrictive covenants or
residual value guarantees.
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KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

Future undiscounted cash flows for the operating leases for each year until the maturity of the
leases and a reconciliation to the lease liability recognized on the statement of financial position
are as follows as of December 31, 2023:

Year Ending
June 30,
2024 $ 154,503
2025 159,749
2026 165,184
2027 170,814
2028 129,225
Thereafter 243,973
Total lease payments 1,023,448
Less: imputed interest (172,651)
Lease liability for operating leases $ (850,797)

NOTE 7 - DONATED MATERIALS AND SERVICES

Donated facilities recorded as in-kind revenue for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, amounted to $110,225 and $115,055, respectively. Value was determined by calculating
a value per square foot of a comparable, commercially available rental space, and applying that
rate to each rented facility’s square footage. These expenses were used in the program services
and management and general as detailed in the statement of functional expenses.

NOTE 8 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization established a 403(b) pension plan for fulltime employees who meet minimum
service requirements. The contribution percentage for all eligible employees is 3% of the
employee’s salary, regardless of whether or not the employee contributes to the pension plan.
In addition, the Organization matches 50% of employee deferrals up to 2% of employee salaries.
Effective July 1, 2007, after an employee has been employed for 18 years, the Organization
increases its matching percentage by one-half of one percent each year, capping at 26 years of
service. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 contributions to the pension plan
amounted to $217,092 and $215,162, respectively. Employer paid contributions vest over a
period of 5 years.

15



KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - CONCENTRATIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives a substantial amount of its funding from government sources,
principally funds passed through federal and state agencies. During the years ended December
31, 2023 and 2022, 99% of the Organization’s revenue was received from governmental
agencies. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, 100% of accounts receivable was from
government agencies.

Certain amounts received under contract with various state and federal agencies are subject to
audit and adjustment by the contracting agencies. Any expenditures or claims disallowed as a
result of such audits would become a liability to the Organization. Management believes that
these adjustments, if any, would not have a significant impact on the financial position or the
change in net assets of the Organization.

NOTE 10 - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Organization manages deposit concentration risk by placing cash and money market
accounts with financial institutions believed by the Organization to be creditworthy. At times,
amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or include uninsured investments in money market
and mutual funds. To date, the Organization has not experienced losses in any of these accounts.

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued May 14, 2024, and determined there were no events that occurred
that required disclosure. No subsequent events occurring after this date have been evaluated for
inclusion in these financial statements.
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Accountants & Consultants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Kids and Company of Linn County

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial
statements of Kids and Company of Linn County (the “Organization”), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2023, the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated May 14, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors

Kids & Company of Linn County

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

é%@ LLP

May 14, 2024
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL OVER CONTROL COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Kids and Company of Linn County

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Kids and Company of Linn County’s (the “Organization”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The Organization’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance Section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization’s federal programs.
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Board of Directors

Kids & Company of Linn County

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Organization’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program
as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we

e exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e obtain an understanding of the Organization’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during our audit.
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Board of Directors

Kids & Company of Linn County

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal controls over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal controls over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

éMM LLP

May 14, 2024
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KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
December 31, 2023

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results
Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements were
prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal controls over financial reporting;:

e Material weakness(es) identified? No
o Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? No
o Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major federal programs:

Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.600 Head Start
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings
None reported.
Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Federal
Assistance Pass-through
Listing Grantor’s
Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Head Start and Early Head Start 93.600 $ 4,727,182
COVID 19 Head Start — American Rescue Plan 93.600 43,520
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 4,770,702
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through Oregon State Department of Education
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 90102 221,453
Total Federal Expenditures $ 4,992,155
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KIDS AND COMPANY OF LINN COUNTY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the
federal award activity of Kids and Company of Linn County (the “Organization”) under programs
of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2023. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such

expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The Organization has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.

24



